
 1  
 

City of Oakland 
Mayor's Commission on Persons with Disabilities (MCPD) 

Monday, March 18, 2019 
5:30 p.m. – 7:30 p.m. 

Sergeant Mark Dunakin Room, First Floor 
One Frank H. Ogawa Plaza (City Hall), Oakland, CA 94612 

Agenda 

I. Call to Order 

II. Roll Call 

III. Public Comments*  
Any person may directly address the Commission on any 
items within the jurisdiction of this Commission. Speakers 
wishing to address a specific item on the agenda may do so 
at the time the item is being considered. 

IV. Agenda Modification and Approval 

V. Approval of February 25, 2019 Minutes (Exhibit A) 

VI. Chair Report; Karen Nakamura, Chair 

VII. Commissioner’s Announcements 

VIII. Overview of Methods for Addressing Access and Functional 
Needs during Emergencies and Natural Disasters; Toshia 
Shavies Marshall, Emergency Services Manager, Emergency 
Management Services Division, Oakland Fire Department 

IX. Downtown Oakland Specific Plan Update, Joanna Winter, 
Planner, Planning and Building Department (Exhibit B) 

X. Staff Updates and Announcements; Anh Nguyen, ADA 
Programs Division Manager 



 2  
 

XI. Strategic Planning Retreat Follow-up; Karen Nakamura 
(Exhibit C) 

XII. Future Agenda Items 
A. Objective 1.1: Accessibility in the Bike Share Program 
B. Objective 1.2: Disabled Parking Spaces and Abuse of 

Disabled Parking Placards 
C. Objective 1.3: Accessibility of Fixed-Route Transit 

Systems in Oakland 
D. Objective 1.4: Reliability and Customer Service of 

Paratransit Systems in Oakland 
E. Objective 1.5: Wheelchair Accessible Vehicles in the 

Taxi Program and Transportation Network Companies 
F. Objective 1.6: Oakland’s Complete Streets Program 
G. Objective 2.1: Oakland Police Department Crisis 

Intervention Training (CIT) 
H. Objective 2.2: Oakland Fire Department, Emergency 

Management Services Division Overview of Methods 
for Addressing Access and Functional Needs During an 
Emergency and Natural Disasters 

I. Objective 3.1: Update on Community Outreach 
J. Objective 4.1: ADA Transition Plan, including Curb 

Ramp and Sidewalk Repair 
K. Objective 4.2: Equitable Prioritization of Measure KK 

Funds for Public Infrastructure Improvements 
L. Objective 5.1: Measure KK Funds for Home 

Modifications to Enhance Accessibility 
M. Objective 5.2: Identify and Reduce Number of 

Homeless Persons with Disabilities in Oakland 

XIII. Adjournment 



 3  
 

Note: The Commission May Take Action on Any 
Item on the Agenda 

 
Public Comments: To offer public comments at this meeting, please 
register with Hoang Banh, ADA Programs Division Analyst, before 
the start of the MCPD meeting at 5:15 p.m. Please note that the 
MCPD will not provide a detailed response to your comments but 
may schedule your issue for a future meeting. The MCPD Public 
Comment period is limited to 15 minutes and each individual 
speaker is limited to 5 minutes.  If more than 3 public speakers 
register, however, then each speaker will be limited to 3 minutes.  If 
more than 5 public speakers register, then each speaker will be 
limited to 2 minutes.  Exceptions to these rules may be granted at 
the discretion of the Chairperson. 

 
This meeting is wheelchair accessible. To request ASL interpreting, 
materials in alternative formats, captioning or assistive listening 
device, or any other disability related accommodation, please email 
adaprograms@oaklandca.gov or call (510) 238-5219 (V) or 711 
(California Relay Service) at least five (5) business days before the 
meeting. Please refrain from wearing scented products to this 
meeting so persons who may experience chemical sensitivities can 
attend. Thank you. 

mailto:adaprograms@oaklandca.gov


 1  
 

City of Oakland 
Mayor's Commission on Persons with Disabilities (MCPD) 

Special Meeting 
Monday, February 25, 2019 

Draft Minutes 

I. Call to Order at 5:34 p.m. 

II. Roll Call 

7 Commissioners present: Gregory, Lynne, Meu, Nakamura, 
Ryan, Sperling, Tevelson 

III. Public Comments: 
• Sheela Gunn-Cushman raised concerns about sidewalk 

conditions, including vegetation not being cut.  Also, 
she tripped and fell on a scooter at Fruitvale BART. 
She wants them better regulated, including geofencing. 

• She also requested a traffic signal or stop sign at 
Brookdale Avenue at Fruitvale Avenue to make it 
easier to go to and from the bus stop. 

• ADA Programs Division staff will follow up with Ms. 
Gunn-Cushman regarding her concerns and provide her 
information and resources she seeks. 

IV. Agenda Modification and Approval 
• Motion to approve agenda without modifications: 

Sperling 
Seconded by Gregory 
Aye - 8: Gregory, Lynne, Meu, Nakamura, Ryan, 
Smith, Sperling, Tevelson 

V. Approval of January 28, 2019 Minutes 
• The minutes were modified as follows: 



 2  
 

o Motion on policy proposal 5 – Joint Liability 
Ordinance 
Aye – 4: Meshack, Meu, Ryan, Sperling 
Nay – 1: Tevelson 
Abstain – 4: Gregory, Lynne, Nakamura, Smith 

• Motion to approve minutes with modifications: 
Sperling 
Seconded by Tevelson 
Aye - 8: Gregory, Lynne, Meu, Nakamura, Ryan, 
Smith, Sperling, Tevelson 

VI. Chair Report; Karen Nakamura, Chair 
• Chair Nakamura met with ADA Division staff and Vice 

Chair Sperling to get up to speed as the new chair. 

VII. Commissioner’s Announcements 
• Commissioner Gregory shared the following: 

o City of Oakland passed a scooter share ordinance 
that includes how companies may apply for 
permits.  The companies must also educate 
scooter riders and enforce rules, especially on 
sidewalks or else be subject to a reduction in 
permits or revocation of their permits entirely by 
City of Oakland. 

o Also, a private law firm and Disability Rights 
California filed a class action lawsuit on January 9 
against City of San Diego and e-scooter 
companies regarding lack of access to sidewalks 
and demanding that scooters not be allowed to be 
parked on sidewalks at all. 



 3  
 

VIII. Paving Update; Sarah Fine, Program Manager, Complete 
Streets Paving & Sidewalks, Great Streets Division, Oakland 
Department of Transportation (OakDOT) 

• Ms. Fine presented “Repave Oakland: Policy Preview 
of Oakland’s Next Paving Plan” (see attachment) that 
included the following: 
o Past and present street pavement conditions 
o New versus old paving prioritization plan 
o Proposed priorities for local and major streets using 

planning areas and equity as a goal 
o Schedule of community meetings to attend before 

proposal goes to City Council 
o Maps and other information will be available online: 

https://www.oaklandca.gov/projects/2019-paving-
plan  

IX. Measure KK Funds for Home Modifications to Enhance 
Accessibility; Loyd Ware, Residential Lending Services 
Manager, Department of Housing and Community 
Development (HCD) 

• Mr. Ware responded to the letter from MCPD sent in 
August 2018 to Michelle Byrd, Director of Housing and 
Community Development, by sharing information on 
resources within the Residential Lending Program. 
o Home Rehabilitation is part of their blanket program.  

Thus, home modification does apply to rental 
properties. The property owner must agree to apply 
for what the tenant wants, since program staff must 
record a deed against the property. 

o They do have $1.5 million in Measure KK funds for 
their program.  Also, there is a loan program and 
Community Development Block Grants (CDBG). 

https://www.oaklandca.gov/projects/2019-paving-plan
https://www.oaklandca.gov/projects/2019-paving-plan


 4  
 

o All funds are first come, first serve; they are not pre-
allocated for specific programs within the blanket 
Residential Lending Program. 

• Commissioner Gregory reiterated from the letter that for 
about 20 years, City of Berkeley has funded access-
enhancing home modifications for low-to-moderate-
income Berkeley renters.  Raquel Molina, Management 
Analyst with City of Berkeley’s Health, Housing, and 
Community Services Division, has offered to provide 
technical assistance to City of Oakland HCD staff. Ms. 
Molina can be reached at RMolina@cityofberkeley.info or 
510-981-5412. 

X. Staff Updates and Announcements; Anh Nguyen, ADA 
Programs Division Manager  

• Mr. Nguyen attended a workshop on February 15 
hosted by the California Public Utilities Commission 
(PUC) on implementing Senate Bill 1376. More 
information at www.cpuc.ca.gov/tncaccess. 

• He also updated that earlier today, the Oakland City 
Council held its first budget workshop, which included 
results from a budget priorities survey.  Those results 
will be attached as part of the minutes for this meeting. 

XI. Strategic Planning Retreat Follow-up 
• Due to lack of time, MCPD may need to schedule a 

separate meeting to finalize the Strategic Plan or during 
next MCPD meeting, meet earlier or stay longer. 

XII. Future Agenda Items 
A. Objective 1.1: Accessibility in the Bike Share Program 
B. Objective 1.2: Disabled Parking Spaces and Abuse of 

Disabled Parking Placards 

mailto:RMolina@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cpuc.ca.gov/tncaccess


 5  
 

C. Objective 1.3: Accessibility of Fixed-Route Transit 
Systems in Oakland 

D. Objective 1.4: Reliability and Customer Service of 
Paratransit Systems in Oakland 

E. Objective 1.5: Wheelchair Accessible Vehicles in the 
Taxi Program and Transportation Network Companies 

F. Objective 1.6: Oakland’s Complete Streets Program 
G. Objective 2.1: Oakland Police Department Crisis 

Intervention Training (CIT) 
H. Objective 2.2: Oakland Fire Department, Emergency 

Management Services Division Overview of Methods 
for Addressing Access and Functional Needs During an 
Emergency and Natural Disasters 

I. Objective 3.1: Update on Community Outreach 
J. Objective 4.1: ADA Transition Plan, including Curb 

Ramp and Sidewalk Repair 
K. Objective 4.2: Equitable Prioritization of Measure KK 

Funds for Public Infrastructure Improvements 
L. Objective 5.1: Measure KK Funds for Home 

Modifications to Enhance Accessibility 
M. Objective 5.2: Identify and Reduce Number of 

Homeless Persons with Disabilities in Oakland 

XIII. Adjourned at 7:31 p.m. 



EXHIBIT A.1 for Attachment to Minutes of Event Date 
City of Oakland Mayor’s Commission on Persons with Disabilities 

Meeting for February 25, 2019 
 

COMMISSIONERS ROLL CALL 
Quorum 
Established: Y 
 
Number Voting  
Members Present: 7 

Pr
es

en
t 

Ex
cu

se
d 

La
te

 

A
rr

iv
e 

La
te

 

Le
av

e 
Ea

rly
 

A
bs

en
t 

Ex
cu

se
d 

N
on

-v
ot

in
g 

st
at

us
 

Chairperson 
Karen Nakamura X 

      

Vice Chair 
Frank Sperling X 

      

COMMISSIONERS 
Sarah Garner   X     
Thomas Gregory X       
Marjorie Lynne X       
Daryl Meshack     X X  
Lester Meu X       
Karina Ryan X       
Noah Smith   5:38 

p.m. 
    

Howard Tevelson X       
Brandon Young     X   
Staff:   
Anh Nguyen, ADA Programs Manager  
Hoang Banh, ADA Program Analyst 
Interpreters:  
 

 



  EXHIBIT A.2 for Attachment to Minutes of Event Date 

SIGN IN SHEET 
Mayor’s Commission on Persons with Disabilities 

Meeting for February 25, 2019 

Name  Agency  Email  Phone Address 

Subscribe to 
MCPD Notices 

(Y/N) 
 

Helen Walsh, Berkeley Commission on Disabilities, 
diversedisabilitymedia@comcast.net  
Julie Wedge, City Council, jwedge@oaklandca.gov  
Sheela Gunn-Cushman 
Loyd Ware, Housing and Community Development 



Repave Oakland
Policy Preview of Oakland’s Next Paving Plan
Mayor’s Commission on Persons With Disabilities
February 25, 2019

Page 1 of 24 EXHIBIT A3



o Central East Oakland
o Coliseum/Airport
o Downtown
o East Oakland Hills
o Eastlake/Fruitvale

Quick Definitions

Local 
Streets

Pavement 
Condition 
Index (PCI)

A simple way of referring to different parts of 
Oakland:

A grade that describes the condition of a 
street on a scale of 0 to 100. Anything 
between 0-50 is a street in poor condition. 
100 is a brand new street.

Planning 
Area

o Glenview/Redwood Heights
o North Oakland Hills
o North Oakland/Adams Point
o West Oakland

Page 2 of 24 EXHIBIT A3



Equity is a goal. It means that your identity 
has no detrimental effect on the distribution 
of resources, opportunities, and outcomes for 
our City’s residents. To achieve equity, we 
prioritize the needs of underserved 
populations.

Quick Definitions

Local 
Streets

Underserved 
Populations

Populations and communities that have 
experienced historic or current disparities. 

This definition includes people of color, low-
income households, people with disabilities, 
households with severe rent burden, people with 
limited English proficiency, and youth/seniors.

Equity

Page 3 of 24 EXHIBIT A3



Paving Basics

Local 
Streets

Poor Fair Good Brand
New

1000 50 70 90

Pavement Condition Index (PCI)
• A numeric grade that scores the condition of 

street on a scale of 0 to 100.

Page 4 of 24 EXHIBIT A3



Current Conditions

Local 
Streets

Major Streets Have Improved 
• An increasing majority of Oakland’s major 

streets are now in good or excellent condition
• Examples: MLK Way, E 14th St 

41%

19%

18%

27%

22%

20%

30%

29%

26%

17%

30%

36%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

2012

2016

2018

Poor Fair Good Excellent

Page 5 of 24 EXHIBIT A3



Current Conditions

Local 
Streets

Local Streets Need Improvement
• The majority of Oakland’s local streets are 

now in poor condition 

27%

49%

60%

40%

36%

24%

31%

13%

11%

3%

2%

5%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

2012

2016

2018

Poor Fair Good Excellent

Page 6 of 24 EXHIBIT A3



80%

2014 Five Year Prioritization Plan

Five 
Year 
Plan

20%Worst 
Streets

• Selected based on input from City 
Council, staff recommendation 
based on complaints, and street 
condition assessment

• Utility cost-share

• Streets with more vehicle volume 
because heavier vehicles = more wear 
and tear

• Both preventative and significant 
maintenance to stretch life of paving

Page 7 of 24 EXHIBIT A3



Demonstrate quick action with a
3-year citywide paving plan. 3
Deliver $100M in paving construction, 
tripling average annual spending.100

Prioritize $75M on local streets 
to improve neighborhood quality of life.75

2019 3-Year Paving Plan

Page 8 of 24 EXHIBIT A3



25MMajor 
Streets
Program funds citywide
to keep major streets in 
good condition

70PCI 
Goal

100M

Local 
Streets
Program funds in nine 
planning areas by equity 
and street condition

Prioritize individual streets by 
street condition, equity, and 
school proximity

Prioritize individual streets by 
street condition and traffic 
safety history

70 50PCI 
Goal 47

75M

Page 9 of 24 EXHIBIT A3



$8M

$9M

$25M

$2M

 $-  $5  $10  $15  $20  $25  $30  $35
Millions

Major Streets
Local Streets

5 Year Plan 
Per Year 
(2014)

3 Year Plan 
Per Year 
(2019)

New vs Old Plan • With little funding for paving, Oakland historically just 
worked to keep major streets in fair to good condition. 

• More funds are available for paving now. Because of this, 
the 2019 Plan can maintain funding levels for major 
streets while still increasing local streets paving.

Page 10 of 24 EXHIBIT A3



 $-  $20  $40  $60  $80  $100
Dollars (Millions)

Major 
Streets

Local 
Streets

Proposed Priorities
5% at Council 
discretion

10% reserved for
utility cost-share 

$75M

$25M

Prioritized by planning areas, equity
index, street condition, and school 
proximity

Prioritized by 
street condition
and traffic safety 
history

• Use street condition, equity, and safety to prioritize
• Utility cost-share means more streets can be fully 

repaved after utility construction.

Page 11 of 24 EXHIBIT A3



Planning Areas

Central/ 
East Oakland

Eastlake/
Fruitvale

West 
Oakland

Downtown

Glenview/
Redwood 

Heights

East 
Oakland 

Hills

Coliseum/
Airport

North
Oakland 

HillsNorth 
Oakland/ 

Adams Point

Page 12 of 24 EXHIBIT A3



Planning Areas
Pop. Total

Street 
Miles

Median
Income

Avg
Street 
Slope

% 
People

of Color

%
Low 

Income

Central / East Oakland 98,937 165 $43k 1.3% 93% 55%

Coliseum / Airport 3,752 20 $44k 2.1% 96% 50%

Downtown 19,169 40 $40k 1.2% 76% 46%

East Oakland Hills 30,733 98 $89k 5.1% 73% 22%

Eastlake / Fruitvale 98,739 134 $45k 2.1% 85% 49%

Glenview/Redwood Heights 31,976 78 $103k 4.7% 48% 16%

North Oakland Hills 23,658 110 $158k 7.6% 31% 6%

North Oakland / Adams Point 79,213 126 $76k 2.1% 50% 27%

West Oakland 36,863 60 $37k 2.1% 77% 55%

Citywide 412,040 830 $58k 3.2% 73% 39%

• Use Planning Areas to identify Local Streets needs based on 
street condition, population density, and equity factors.

Page 13 of 24 EXHIBIT A3



Planning Areas
Pop. Citywide 

Share of 
Underserved 

Pop.

Citywide 
Share of Local 

Street Miles 
(PCI < 50)

Local
Streets 

Avg
PCI

People Per 
Local 

Street Mile 
(PCI < 50)

Central / East Oakland 98,937 29% 18% 48 1,400
Coliseum / Airport 3,752 1% 2% 48 536
Downtown 19,169 7% 2% 54 2,311
East Oakland Hills 30,733 6% 10% 51 781
Eastlake / Fruitvale 98,739 28% 17% 48 1,460
Glenview/Redwood Heights 31,976 4% 10% 48 818
North Oakland Hills 23,658 2% 16% 46 379 
North Oakland / Adams Point 79,213 14% 19% 40 1,050
West Oakland 36,863 8% 6% 47 1,040
Citywide 412,040 47 1,044

• Use Planning Areas to identify Local Streets needs based on 
street condition, population density, and equity factors.

Page 14 of 24 EXHIBIT A3



Street Condition & Equity

18%

2% 2%

10%

17%

10%

16%

19%

6%

29%

1%

7% 6%

28%

4%
2%

14%

8%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

Central East
Oakland

Coliseum/
Airport

Downtown East Oakland
Hills

Eastlake/
Fruitvale

Glenview/
Redwood
Heights

North Oakland
Hills

North Oakland/
Adams Point

West Oakland

Share of  Local Streets In
Poor Condition
Share of Underserved
Populations

Page 15 of 24 EXHIBIT A3



18%

2% 2%

10%

17%

10%

16%

19%

6%

29%

1%

7% 6%

28%

4%
2%

14%

8%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

Central East
Oakland

Coliseum/
Airport

Downtown East Oakland
Hills

Eastlake/
Fruitvale

Glenview/
Redwood
Heights

North Oakland
Hills

North Oakland/
Adams Point

West Oakland

24%

8%

23%

7%
9%

17%

7%
4%1%

Funding By Planning Area
• Distribute funding for local streets 

by the share of underserved 
populations and share of local 
street miles in poor condition

Page 16 of 24 EXHIBIT A3



$7.5 
$3.8 

$15.1 

$0.9 $2.8 
$5.0 

$14.5 

$4.6 $5.7 

$10.7 

$4.6 
 $-

 $5

 $10

 $15

 $20

 $25

Utility
coordination

Council
discretion

Central East
Oakland

Coliseum/
Airport

Downtown East Oakland
Hills

Eastlake/
Fruitvale

Glenview/
Redwood
Heights

North
Oakland Hills

North
Oakland/

Adams Point

West
Oakland

D
ol

la
rs

 (M
ill

io
n

s)
Proposed Local Streets Funding

10% 5% 85%

Page 17 of 24 EXHIBIT A3



25%

80% 20%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

5 Year Plan
(2014)

3 Year Plan 
(2019)

New vs Old Plan

Prioritized by planning areas, equity
index, street condition, and school 
proximity

Prioritized by input from 
City Council, complaints, 
and street condition

Council 
Discretion

Utility 
Coordination

Prioritized by 
street condition

Prioritized by 
street condition 
and traffic safety 
history

8% 4%

Page 18 of 24 EXHIBIT A3



• Equity-driven capital planning

• Increased local streets repaving

• “Council Discretion” replaces “Worst Streets”

• Added sunshine & accountability on prioritized streets
89% of spending identified at plan adoption
Staff to bring Council Discretion streets to PWC in Fall 2019
Utility Coordination streets will be reported annually

• Making safety routine
Incorporate safety improvements like high visibility crosswalks on 
all projects

Major Changes

Page 19 of 24 EXHIBIT A3



• Level of funding for Major Streets
Arterials, which carry the most trips every day across all modes, will 
be kept in good condition.  

• Complete Streets coordination on Major Streets
Street improvement recommendations from Let’s Bike Oakland, 
Let’s Walk Oakland, Downtown Oakland Specific Plan, and other 
adopted plans will be folded into Paving Program.  

• Coordination with ADA Transition Plan
Paving Program will continue to improve curb ramps and perform 
sidewalk repairs during paving construction.  

Staying the Same

Page 20 of 24 EXHIBIT A3



• In three years, funding for major streets must double 
To keep major streets at an average PCI of 70, funding for major 
streets rehabilitation and preservation must increase from 
$8.3M/year to $15M/year.

• No cost break in maintaining the status quo for local streets
For the next 8 years, Oakland will need to spend $25M/year on local 
streets just to maintain an average PCI of 50.

• Oakland needs to spend at least $40M/year in paving construction 
to maintain the status quo.

• Measure KK is a non-renewable resource
Measure KK infrastructure funding will run out in 5 years.

Tough Medicine

Page 21 of 24 EXHIBIT A3



Collect 
Data

Budget 
Scenarios

Develop 
3Y Work 

Plan

Adopt 
Plan

Fall 2018

Plan incorporated into 
Adopted CIP

Community engagement
Online open house, city 
commissions & NCPCs

Jan-Feb 2019 April 2019

Next Steps
Draft Plan to 
PWC + Council

March 2019

Page 22 of 24 EXHIBIT A3



Date Meeting Time Address
3/13/2019 Online Open House www.oaklandca.gov
3/13/2019 Bella Vista NCPC 7:15p Bella Vista Elementary School Auditorium 

1025 E. 28th St
3/13/2019 Brookfield/Columbia 

Garden/Sobrante Park RAC
6:00p Madison Park Academy

400 Capistrano Drive
3/14/2019 Prescott NCPC 6:30p Sullivan Community Center, 1671 8th Street
3/15/2019 Coliseum Melrose NCPC 6:00p 81st Avenue Library, 1021 81st Ave
3/20/2019 Beat 33X/24X Neighborhood 

Improvement Council
6:00p Eastmont Police Substation

2651 73rd Ave
3/20/2019 Chinatown NCPC 4:00p Hotel Oakland, 270 13th Street
3/20/2019 Golden Gate NCPC 6:30p Charles Porter Golden Gate Recreation Center 

1075 62nd Street
3/21/2019 Fruitvale Unity NCPC 6:30p Fruitvale San Antonio Senior Center

3301 E 12th St #201
3/27/2019 Melrose-High Hopes NCPC 7:00p Horace Mann School

5222 Ygnacio Avenue

Community Meetings

Page 23 of 24 EXHIBIT A3



Thank you!
Sarah Fine / sfine@oaklandca.gov
Complete Streets Paving & Sidewalks
Oakland Department of Transportation

Page 24 of 24 EXHIBIT A3



Page 1 of 1 

City of Oakland  250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 

Housing and Community Development Agency   Oakland, CA  94612 

Residential Lending and Housing Rehabilitation Services      (510)-238-3909 

Access Improvement Program (AIP) Grant 
Program Description 

PURPOSE: 
The ACCESS IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (AIP) is a City of Oakland program 
that provides grants for accessibility modifications to both owner-occupied and 
rental properties. 

REQUIREMENTS 

LOCATION:  Property must be located in one of the seven Community Development
Districts.

ELIGIBLE ITEMS: 
 Eligible repairs include: wheelchair ramps or lifts, bathroom modification for

wheelchair accessibility, and entry modifications.

OWNER-OCCUPIED RENTAL PROPERTIES 

MAXIMUM 
GRANT 
AMOUNT: 

 The maximum grant is $15,000,
except in cases where a lift is
required, the maximum amount is
$24,000.

 For existing construction, the maximum grant
is $15,000 per unit, except in cases where a
lift is required, the maximum amount is
$24,000.

 For new construction, the maximum grant is
$4,000 per unit or $16,000 per 4-unit
property.

OCCUPANCY 

 Applicant must occupy the property
and maintain the access________
improvements for at least five years.

If the owner sells the property, fails to 
occupy the property, or removes the 
access improvements within the five-year 
period, the Owner shall reimburse the City 
on a prorated basis. 

 Property owner must agree to rent unit(s)
made accessible to disabled person(s) for a
minimum of five years.

If the owner (or his or her successor) terminates 
the agreement, the owner (or his or her successor) 
shall reimburse the City on a prorated basis.  In the 
event of change of ownership, the obligation 
remains through the term of the Agreement.  

INCOME 

 Owner-Occupant’s annual
household income cannot exceed
80% of the area median income.
Income of all household members
who are 18 years or older will be
considered to determine income
eligibility.

 Tenant’s annual household income cannot
exceed 80% of the area median income.
Income of all household members who are 18
years or older will be considered to determine
income eligibility of the tenant.

INCOME LIMITS CURRENTLY IN EFFECT 

Family Size Maximum Income 
1 $62,750 
2 $71,700 
3 $80,650 
4 $89,600 
5 $96,800 
6 $103,950 
7 $111,150 
8 $118,300 

It is the policy of the City of Oakland not to discriminate on the basis of disability in employment or any of its programs, activities, or services.  Auxiliary aids and services may be provided upon 
request. 

Revised 1.10.19 

EXHIBIT A4-1



Page 1 of 1 

City of Oakland  250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 

Housing and Community Development Agency   Oakland, CA  94612 

Residential Lending and Housing Rehabilitation Services      (510)-238-3909 

Emergency Home Repair Program (EHRP) Loan 
Program Description 

PURPOSE: 
The EMERGENCY HOME REPAIR PROGRAM (EHRP) provides loan funds for home 
repairs that require immediate attention, such as emergency violations issued by a 
Fire Marshall, Health Officer or Code Enforcement Officer, leaking roof or sewer 
break. 

REQUIREMENTS: 

LOCATION:  Property must be located in the City of Oakland.

ELIGIBLE ITEMS: 

 Loan funds must be used for severe emergency conditions such as major roof
repairs, sewer repairs or other major mechanical systems including electrical
and plumbing repairs.

MINIMUM LOAN AMOUNT  $2,500 MAXIMUM LOAN AMOUNT:  $15,000

INTEREST RATE:  Zero Interest

PAYMENTS/TERM: 
 No periodic payments
 Loan will be paid upon the sale, transfer of title of property, and refinance

(under certain conditions)

PREPAYMENT PENALTY:  None

SECURITY:  Deed of Trust

CLOSING COST  $350

OCCUPANCY: 

OWNERS ON RECORD: 

 Applicant must occupy the property

 All owners on record must apply

INCOME: 

 Applicant’s annual household income cannot exceed the income limits (50%
AMI) listed below.  Income of all household members who are 18 years or
older must be considered to determine income eligibility (includes
house/roommates).

INCOME LIMITS: Household Size Maximum Income 

1 $40,700 
2 $46,500 
3 $52,300 
4 $58,100 
5 $62,750 
6 $67,400 
7 $72,050 
8 $76,700 

It is the policy of the City of Oakland not to discriminate on the basis of disability in employment or any of its programs, activities, or services.  Auxiliary aids and services may be provided upon 
request. 

Revised 1.10.19 

EXHIBIT A4-2



Page 1 of 1 

City of Oakland  250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 

Housing and Community Development Agency   Oakland, CA  94612 

Residential Lending and Housing Rehabilitation Services      (510)-238-3909 

Home Maintenance and Improvement Program (HMIP) Loan 
Program Description 

PURPOSE: 

The Home Maintenance and Improvement Program (HMIP) is a City of Oakland Housing 
Rehabilitation program that offers loans to owner-occupied low-income households to correct 
health and safety related repairs, including building code deficiencies.  Loans are not made for 
payment or reimbursement of completed or in-process repair costs. 

REQUIREMENTS: 

LOCATION:  Property must be located in one of the seven Community Development Districts.

OCCUPANCY: 
 Single family residences must have been owner-occupied for a minimum of 1 year by low-

income households
 Two-unit structures must have at least one unit occupied by a low-income household

 Three-to-Four unit structures must have at least 51% of the units occupied by low-moderate
income households.

 All vested recorded owners of the property must complete the application even if they do not
occupy the property.

Types of HMIP Loans: DEFERRED LOAN 0% INTEREST DEFERRED LOAN 3% INTEREST 

INTEREST RATE:  0% Interest  3% Interest
PAYMENTS/TERMS:  No Periodic Payments

 Loan will be paid upon the sale or
transfer of title of property or when the
property is no longer owner-occupied.

 No Periodic Payments
 Loan will be paid upon the sale or

transfer of title of property or when the
property is no longer owner-occupied.

SECURITY:  Deed of Trust  Deed of Trust
PREPAYMENT:  None  None

CLOSING COSTS:  $500  $500

MAXIMUM LOAN 
AMOUNTS: 

 $75,000 for single family (or the cost of
rehabilitation, whichever is less) and
$5,000 for each additional unit, up to four
units.

 $75,000 for single family (or the cost of
rehabilitation, whichever is less) and
$5,000 for each additional unit, up to four
units.

MAXIMUM AFTER 
REHAB VALUE 

 95% of FHA median purchase price for
our area may apply

 95% of FHA median purchase price for
our area may apply

INCOME: 

 Annual Household Income cannot exceed
50% of the established HUD median
income limits for Alameda County

 Annual Household Income cannot
exceed 80% of the established HUD
median income limits for Alameda
County

Income of all household members who are 18 years or older must be considered to determine income eligibility. 

Income Limits Household Size Maximum Income* Household Size Maximum Income 
1 $40,700 1 $62,750 
2 $46,500 2 $71,700 
3 $52,300 3 $80,650 
4 $58,100 4 $89,600 
5 $62,750 5 $96,800 
6 $67,400 6 $103,950 
7 $72,050 7 $111,150 
8 $76,700 8 $118,300 

It is the policy of the City of Oakland not to discriminate on the basis of disability in employment or any of its programs, activities, or services.  Auxiliary aids and services may be provided upon 
request. 

      Revised 1.10.19 

EXHIBIT A4-3



Page 1 of 1 

City of Oakland  250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 

Housing and Community Development Agency   Oakland, CA  94612 

Residential Lending and Housing Rehabilitation Services      (510)-238-3909 

Lead-Safe Homes Program (LSHP) Grant 
Program Description 

It is the policy of the City of Oakland not to discriminate on the basis of disability in employment or any of its programs, activities, or services.  Auxiliary aids and services may be provided upon 
request. 

 Revised 1.10.19 

PURPOSE: 

The Lead-Safe Homes Program provides grants to very low-income, disabled 
and/or Senior homeowners.  Funds must be used for exterior house painting and 
other related lead-based paint hazards reduction services.   Limited grants are 
available to families with children under age 6 and expectant mothers. 

REQUIREMENTS: 

LOCATION: 
 Property must be located in one of the seven Community Development

Districts.

ELIGIBILITY: 

 A risk assessment for lead-based paint hazards must be performed at the
property.

 All property owners on record must apply.

 AND 

 The head of the household must be at least 62 years of age, or have a physical
disability.

 OR 

 There must be children age 6 or under and/or expectant mothers in the
household.

MAXIMUM GRANT AMOUNT: 
 Grants are limited to the amount needed to correct lead hazards, interior

painting, exterior painting and/or soil treatment.

OCCUPANCY:  Owner-occupied

INCOME: 

 Total household income must meet the Income Limits criteria.

 Income of all household members 18 or older, including house/roommates, will
be considered to determine income eligibility.

INCOME LIMITS: 

Household 
Size 

Maximum Income (50%) 
Seniors/Disabled 

Maximum Income (80%) 
Households w/ Children 

1 $40,700 $62,750 
2 $46,500 $71,700 
3 $52,300 $80,650 
4 $58,100 $89,600 
5 $62,750 $96,800 
6 $67,400 $103,950 
7 $72,050 $111,150 
8 $76,700 $118,300 

EXHIBIT A4-4






























































































































































































	City of Oakland
	Mayor's Commission on Persons with Disabilities (MCPD)
	Monday, March 18, 2019
	Agenda
	I. Call to Order
	II. Roll Call
	III. Public Comments*
	IV. Agenda Modification and Approval
	V. Approval of February 25, 2019 Minutes (Exhibit A)
	VI. Chair Report; Karen Nakamura, Chair
	VII. Commissioner’s Announcements
	VIII. Overview of Methods for Addressing Access and Functional Needs during Emergencies and Natural Disasters; Toshia Shavies Marshall, Emergency Services Manager, Emergency Management Services Division, Oakland Fire Department
	IX. Downtown Oakland Specific Plan Update, Joanna Winter, Planner, Planning and Building Department (Exhibit B)
	X. Staff Updates and Announcements; Anh Nguyen, ADA Programs Division Manager
	XI. Strategic Planning Retreat Follow-up; Karen Nakamura (Exhibit C)
	XII. Future Agenda Items
	XIII. Adjournment
	Note: The Commission May Take Action on Any Item on the Agenda

	EXHIBIT A MCPD February 2019 Minutes Draft.pdf
	City of Oakland
	Mayor's Commission on Persons with Disabilities (MCPD)
	Special Meeting
	Monday, February 25, 2019
	Draft Minutes
	I. Call to Order at 5:34 p.m.
	II. Roll Call
	III. Public Comments:
	IV. Agenda Modification and Approval
	V. Approval of January 28, 2019 Minutes
	VI. Chair Report; Karen Nakamura, Chair
	VII. Commissioner’s Announcements
	VIII. Paving Update; Sarah Fine, Program Manager, Complete Streets Paving & Sidewalks, Great Streets Division, Oakland Department of Transportation (OakDOT)
	IX. Measure KK Funds for Home Modifications to Enhance Accessibility; Loyd Ware, Residential Lending Services Manager, Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD)
	X. Staff Updates and Announcements; Anh Nguyen, ADA Programs Division Manager
	XI. Strategic Planning Retreat Follow-up
	XII. Future Agenda Items
	XIII. Adjourned at 7:31 p.m.


	EXHIBIT A1 Roll Call (2-25-19).pdf
	Meeting for February 25, 2019
	COMMISSIONERS ROLL CALL

	Quorum
	Excused


	EXHIBIT A3 Repave Oakland Presentation 2019-02-25 with page numbers.pdf
	Repace Oakland: Policy Preview of Oakland's Next Paving Plan
	Quick Definitions: Pavement Condition Index (PCI) and Planning Area
	Quick Definitions: Underserved Populations and Equity
	Paving Basics
	Current Conditions: Major Streets Have Improved
	Current Conditions: Local Streets Need Improvement
	2014 Five Year Priortization Plan
	2019 Three-Year Paving Plan
	$100 million: $25 million for major streets and $75 million for local streets
	New Versus Old Plan
	Proposed Priorities
	Planning Areas Map
	Planning Areas: Use Planning Areas to identify Local Streets needs based on street condition, population density, and equity factors
	Planning Areas: Use Planning Areas to identify Local Streets needs based on street condition, population density, and equity factors
	Street Condition and Equity
	Funding by Planning Area
	Proposed Local Streets Funding
	New Versus Old Plan
	Major Changes
	Staying the Same
	Tough Medicine
	Next Steps
	Community Meetings
	Thank You: Sarah Fine, sfine@oaklandca.gov




